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The attached property, the Barnett-Attwood House, in Cleveland
County, Arkansas, reference number 77000247, was listed in the
National Register of Historic Places by the Keeper of the
National Register on 7-29-1977, as evidenced by the FEDERAL
REGISTER/WEEKLY LIST notice of Tuesday, February 7, 1978,
Part ll, Vol. 43, No. 26, page 5169. The attached nomination form
is a copy of the original documentation provided to the Keeper
at the time of listing.
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—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Believed to be the oldest structure still standing in Cleveland
County, the Barnett-Attwood House was originally constructed as

a five room log dog-trot residence in 1835-36. The main body of
the structure is composed of hand-hewn pine timbers and is sup-
ported by original wood pilings. The timbers, most of which are
18 feet . long and 10 inches thick, are square-notched and placed
together with pegs. The largest of the hand-hewn timbers spans
the entire width of the structure across the portico, measuring
fifty feet.

The Barnett-Attwood House is now a one-and-one-half story log
structure with an ell-shaped addition on the rear (east elevation),
A gable roof tops the house, extending to cover the wide veranda
across the facade. This veranda is supported by six turned wooden

posts. Exposed beams support the roof across the front edge of the
facade (west elevation).

The facade is three-bays wide with a single entry door and side-~
lights surrounded by sections of vertical flushboard. A double-
hung six-over-six lite window flanks either side of the entry.
Fenestration is simple. The portico posts, entry and window trim
are all painted white in contrast to the dark red color on the
body of the house. i

A modern brick foundation combined with the original wood pilings
support the Barnett-Attwood House. Vertical flushboard found in
the gable ends.appears to have been added. In the.center of each
gable end is a small double-hung six-over-six lite window. On
each the north and south elevations of the log structure are two
double-hung six-over-six lite windows. Shiplap siding covers the
one-story additions on the rear of the house.

The original structure consisted of an open dog-trot flanked on
either side by 20 feet by 20 feet rooms, each containing a fire-~
place. Upstairs were three rooms. There was a portico which ex-
tended across the full width of the house on both the west and east
elevations.

There have been several alterations to the structure since its con-
struction in 1835-36. In 1875 Nathaniel Barnett enclosed and
extended the cast portico to form an ell-shaped addition. The ad-

~ dition was of log construction. This area facilitated a kitchen and
dining room.
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Also at this time, the dog-trot was encldsed.' The six turned

portico posts on the facade appear to have been added at this
time. A

In 1961 the present occupant of the Barnett-Attwood House
renovated" it for more modern living. C. B. Attwood, a direct
descendant of Barnett, took care to see that the hand-hewn
timbers used for walls as well as the other 1835-36 character-
istics of carpentry were maintained intact. At this time the
brick foundation was laid, the entry rebuilt and the fireplaces
taken out of the two downstairs rooms. Several other minor
restoration projects took place, however the original section
of the house remains much the same as the 1875 renovatiom,.

The interiors of the Barnett-Attwood House are exceptionally
well preserved and vvisiblyv present a strong historical impact.
Log walls, exposed ceiling beams and original door and window
moldings remain in excellent condition. The steep, narrow stair-
way in the center hall is original from the 1875 remavation.

New flooring has been added, but is in keeping with the style and

period of the house.

Although the Barnett-Attwood House has had several alterations
since its original construction in 1835-36, the present restored
structure is in excellent condition and remains on its original
site. The house maintains a great deal of the historic character
for which it is noted in Cleveland County and stands as a tangible
reminder of the pioneer family who settled the area.
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The Barnett-Attwood House in Cleveland County was constructed in 1835-
36 by one of the pioneer settlers in the area. Nathaniel Barnett con-
structed his log house for his family who were to come from Alabama
and join him in the new territory. Although the structure has under-
gone several alterations through the years, it is a good example of

an improved Arkansas dog-trot style house.

Nathaniel Barnett was born in Elbert County, Georgia, on May 3, 1793.
He married Mary Polly Hudson, also of Elbert County, Georgia on
September 2, 1814, and moved, along with a number of relatives, to
Montgomery, Alabama. ;

The eldest daughter of the Barnett's nine children married John Harvie
Marks II in 1815. In 1835-36 Nathaniel Barnett and his son-in-law
journeyed to southeast Arkansas. They were pleased with the area and
bought most of Union, Bradley and Dorsey (now Cleveland) counties.

Marks alone invested $17,000 in the business venture. This purchase

was- shared by other branches of the family who were to come later from
Alabama. It is believed that at that time, Barnett constructed a five-
room log dog-trot house near the present town of New Edinburg. Barnett
and Marks then returned to Alabama to bring their families and relatives.
This group settled within the territory of the original 1835-36 land pur-
chase and are. largely responsible settlement of the area. With the set-
tlement of these families in southcentral Arkansas came establishment of
a sawmill, furniture factory and large cotton plantations. John Harvie
Marks is credited with cutting roads in and around Warren in Bradley
County and in 1842 served as one of the County Commissioners appointed
to lay out the town of Warren.

One of the Barnett's sons, William David Barnett, became one of the most
prominent and successful surgeons in the south. He was one of the
founders of the Little Rock Medical College, but practiced medicine in
south Arkansas. He served in the Civil War with the rank of Major in
the Confederate Army. William Barnett also represented Bradley County
in the Arkansas State Legislature. :
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. The originally five room log dog-trot house built by Nathaniel

Barnett in 1835-36 is now owned and lived in by a direct descendant
of Barnett, C. B. Attwood, who remodeled the house in 1961 and has
lived there since. In remodeling the structure he left most of

the hand-hewn timbers uncovered. The original structure consisted
of an open dog-trot flanked on either side by 20 feet by 20 feet
rooms. The upstairs was divided into three rooms. There was a
portico which extended across the full width of the house on both the
west and east elevation. 'In 1875 Barnett enclosed the dog-trot.

Also at this time rear portico enclosed and extended to form an ell-
shaped addition. '

The Barnett-Attwood House is one of the most important historic land-
marks in Cleveland County. It carries the name of one of the families
who settled the area and is believed to be the oldest structure still
standing in the county. Originating as a log dog-trot structure, the
Barnett-Attwood House typlifies adaptation of an 1835-36 period house
to over 150 years of use.
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Montgomery, Alabama.

The eldest daughter of the Barmeti's nine children marriesd Jchn Harvie
Marks II in 131%. 1In 1835-36 Hathaniel Barnett and bis son-in-law
journeyed to southeast Arkansas. fTheoy vere pleased with the area and
bought most of Uricn, Bradiey and Dorscy (now Cleveland counties.

Marks alone invested $17,0C0 in tba musiness venture. This purchase

was shared by other branches of the fanily who wara to core later from
Alabama. It is believed that at that time, Barnett constructed a five-
-room log dog-trot house near the present town of Mew Edinburg. Earnatt
and Marks then returned to Alabama to bring their families and ralatives.
This group settled within the territory of the original 1835-35 land pur=
chase and are largely responsible settlement of the area. Wwith tha set-
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prominent and successful surgeons in tha south. Ha was onae of the
founders of the Little Rock Medical College, but practiced medicine in
south Arkanszs. He served in the Civil War with the rank of Major in
the Confaderate Army. William Barnett alsc represented Bradley Comt?
in the Arkansas State Legislature.
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Also at this time, the dog-trot was enclosed. The six turned

portico posts on the facade appear to have been added at this
“time.

In 1961 the present occupant of the Barnett-Att-swood House
renovated it for more modern living. C. B. Attwood, a airect
descendant of Barnett, took care to see that the hand-hewn
timbers used for walls as well as the other 1835-36 character-
istics of carpentry were maintained intact. At this time the
brick foundation was laid, the entry rebuilt and the. fireplaces
taken out of the two downstairs rooms. Several other minor
restoracion projects tock place, however the original section
of the house remains much the same as the 1875 renovation,.

The interiors of the Barmett-Attwood House are exceptionally
well preserved and visibly’ present a strong historical impact.
Log.wails, exposed ceiling beims and original door and window
moldings remain in excellent condition. The steep, narrow stair-
way in the center hall is original from the 1875 renovation.

New flooring has been added, but is in keeping with the style and
period of the house.

Although the Barnett-Attwood House has had several alterations
since its original construction in 1835-36, the present restored

. structure is in excellent condition and remains on its original
site. The house maintains a great deal of the historic character
for which it is noted in Cleveland County and stands as a tangible
reminder of the pioneer family who settled the area.
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Missing Core Documentation

Property Name County, State Reference Number
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